
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 29 December 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Thursday, 7 January 2021 at 2.00 pm 
 

Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 
Skype for Business 

 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman) 
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Mike Exton, Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, Councillor Philip 
Knowles, Councillor Amanda Wheeler and Councillor Linda Wootten 

 
 

 
Invited 
Cabinet 

Members 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council  
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations  
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 

 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

 

Rural and 

Communities 

Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 



 

 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

 

Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 7 January 2021 

 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 
1.   Comments form Members of the Public 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 

discretion. 

 

   
2.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
3.   Disclosure of Interest 

Members are asked to disclose any interest in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

   
4.   Action Notes from the meeting held on 12 November 2020 (Pages 5 - 16) 

   
5.   Updates from the previous meeting (Pages 17 - 19) 

   
6.   Verbal Update from Cabinet Members 

Verbal report provided by Cabinet Members  
 

   
7.   Anti-Racism Report 

Report detailing Council’s response to a Motion as agreed by Council on 1 

October 2020 in seeking to challenge and tackle all forms of racism 

(Pages 21 - 27) 

   
8.   Review of Voids 

To review the current void property process and policy to substantially reduce 

void period and increase revenues to the Council's housing revenue account 

and make more properties available per annum to those in housing need 

To follow  

   
9.   Future Work Programme 

Consider any amendments or addition to the Work Programme for the 

Committee 

(Pages 29 - 31) 

   
10.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/7Z83Y38Y
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

   



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Meeting of the 
Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Thursday, 12 November 2020, 2.00 pm 

 

 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 
Committee Members present 
  
Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman) 
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mike Exton 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown 
 

Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Amanda Wheeler 
Councillor Linda Wootten 
 
 

Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader and Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and 
Transformation)  
Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
 
Officers Other Members present 
 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 
Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 
Housing Delivery  
Richard Wyles, Interim Director of 
Finance, Section 151 Officer 
Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and 
Governance 
Chris Stratford, Interim Assistant Director 
of Housing  
Carol Drury, Community Engagement & 
Policy Development Officer 
Patrick Astill, Communications Officer 
Candy Richards, Communications Officer 
Debbie Roberts, Corporate Project 
Officer 
Ben Russell, Performance Lead 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 
External Presenter 
Julie Picken (Independent Consultant) 
 

5

Agenda Item 4



 

Zena West, Scrutiny Officer 
Susan Hislop, Democracy Officer 

 
 
71. Comments from Members of the Public 

 
Mr Phil Gadd addressed the Committee ahead of item 11. Key points were 
noted as: 
 

• Mr Gadd had been involved in highlighting the heating and hot water 
system in Riverside since 2016 

• It had been difficult to receive responses and he felt the council were 
not listening to the complaints raised 

• The residents of Riverside had spent several years experiencing 
intermittent supply of hot water and heating. Temporary heating or hot 
water should be a short-term fix only 

• Mr Gadd had had to continue to raise and revisit the issue with the 
Council, involving councillors, the MP and press as well as Mr Gadd 
attending Council meetings 

• Many of the issues he had raised at full council are now reported for 
action 

• The system installed in 2016 was already relatively obsolete and at end 
of life with spares and replacement parts being hard to find and 
expensive 

• The issue started with the removal of storage tanks and replacing them 
with Heat Distribution System (HDU) system in 2016  

 
Mr Gadd concluded that he hoped that SKDC took full notice of the report 
undertaken by the independent consultant and to comply with its findings. He 
hoped for a more open, honest and proactive response to issues raised by 
residents. 
 
The Chairman requested that should a response to Mr Gadd’s comments not 
be covered in item 11, for him to contact the Chairman and he will ensure a 
reply is provided. 
 

72. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
A register of attendance was taken, confirming all committee members were 
present. 
 

73. Disclosures of Interest 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 

6



 

74. Action Notes from the meeting held on 10 September 2020 
 
The Action Notes from the meeting held on 10 September 2020, were agreed 
to be a true record. 
 

75. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
No comments were received, and all actions were noted as complete. 
 

76. Verbal Update from Cabinet Members 
 
Due to the Cabinet Member for Communities being unable to present the 
report the Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer delivered 
a verbal update on her behalf to Committee members. 
 
Covid-19  
 

• National deaths caused by Covid-19 had been updated to 50,000  

• There had been a reported rise of 68 cases in South Kesteven on the 
previous week with a total of 78 Covid-related deaths 

• Work was continuing with the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum during the 
second lockdown 

• Letters from Government have been sent to the clinically extremely 
vulnerable including parents and carers with advice to stay at home. 
Qualifying residents have been encouraged to register with the NHS 
national shielding service 

• The community hub was still active. Food box service was not 
available. It was possible if required, for The Hub to be placed on full 
capacity.  

• A new walk-in testing station was being placed in Grantham to 
supplement the popup facility. Pre booking was required 

 
The Chairman recorded his wishes to the Cabinet Member for Communities 
for a speedy recovery and requested a report be presented at the next 
meeting. 
 
A member requested testing stations for the south of the district. A temporary 
station was already available with no plans for any additional facilities within 
the district. Facilities were determined by greatest risk. 
 
Feedback from anti-racism motion to Council 

• The Council had passed the anti-racism motion on 1 October 2020. An 
action plan was now being worked on to be presented at the next 
meeting of this committee. 
 

Community Fund 

• The report was presented to Cabinet on 13 October 2020 including the 
committee’s observations. The proposed removal of parishes and 

7



 

towns from the criteria was not agreed by Cabinet who extended their 
appreciation of the committee’s input. Applications to the Community 
Fund were available up to 4 December 2020. 
 

The Committee received updates from the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning on the following items: 
 
Homelessness Partnership with other Districts 

• The Rough Sleep Initiative Change for Lincs reported that 13 staff were 
working with individuals needing emergency accommodation 

• 3 people had been identified for emergency support  

• £145,000 of funds had been provided for development and 
refurbishment of 4 privately acquired properties; £40,000 for an 
intensive support worker and an additional £14,000 for short-term bed 
and breakfast 
 

Cold weather payments for homeless people  

• Cold weather support for the homeless was available from central 
government towards bed and breakfast and energy costs. 
 

Local Plan 

• The submission was issued on 28 October 2020. Consultation findings 
were awaited. 
 

External Planning Review 

• Findings of the planning review were reported to be with Cratus having 
been presented to members and officers. The review was to be 
considered by the Governance and Audit Committee on 19 November 
2020 and would return to this committee in six months. 
 

Disabled Facilities Grants Quarter 2 

• Home works and occupational therapy have continued despite Covid-
19 with £410,000 spent to date out of the total budget of £800,000. 
 

Housing Repairs Update 

• Housing repairs had been impacted by Covid-19. Urgent and 
emergency repairs had been given priority. A reported 666 planned 
tasks were in process with the November lockdown not being as 
restrictive to that experienced earlier in the year.  
 

Garden Maintenance Scheme 

• Garden maintenance criteria was being reviewed with planned 
adjustments. The enhancement of sheltered garden schemes was 
continuing. 
 

ACTION 1 
To be added to the Committees work programme: 

• Report of action plan following the Council the motion on anti-racism. 

8



 

 
77. Mental Health Challenge Workshop 

 
Due to recognition of increased mental health concerns by the pandemic, it 
was proposed to hold a joint workshop on 10 December 2020 with the Culture 
and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Members were asked 
to delegate authority to the workshop to make representation to Cabinet rather 
than to return to these committees. Members were invited to attend the 
workshop; there was no limit on numbers.   
 
On being put to the committee the following Members volunteered to attend: 
 

Councillor Michael Exton 
Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Councillor Amanda Wheeler 
Councillor Linda Wootten Councillor Ray Wootten 

 
Councillors Ashley Baxter and Jacky Smith, who were not members of either 
Committee also wished to volunteer for the workshop. 
 
Following a procedural point by a guest Councillor, it was noted that a remit 
should be provided at the start of the workshop.  
 
ACTION 2 
Councillor volunteers for the Mental Health Challenge workshop to be noted, 
and the list of names provided to the event organisers. 
 

78. Health and Safety Compliance Report 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning introduced the report on 
behalf of the Leader of the Council who was experiencing technical issues. 
Additional presenters were the Chief Executive and Interim Assistant Director 
of Housing.  
 
In his introduction, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning outlined the 
background and impact to residents and the public. The Cabinet Member had 
been working since his appointment, prior to receipt of the report, to improve 
record keeping on council stock. 
 
The Chief Executive recorded her sincere apologies on behalf of the Council 
to all tenants. She informed the Committee that the report with the conclusions 
of the housing compliance audit had been commissioned by herself, the 
Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Housing in June 2020.  
 
In June 2020 RSM were appointed as auditors to undertake a compliance 
review, they undertook a desktop review with key findings attached to the 
report. The conclusions of the report led to the appointment of an Interim 

9



 

Assistant Director of Housing. The Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Cabinet referred SKDC to the Housing Regulator. 
 
Systems were assessed to be not fit for purpose that led to an action plan 
being incorporated along with an improvement plan that had been shared with 
the Regulator. A compliance response was awaited from the Social Housing 
Regulator. 
 
Members were assured by the Chief Executive that the right team with the 
right skill set was now in place. A new head of technical services had been 
appointed to ensure compliance on electrical works. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning added that a risk analysis was 
in place to ensure compliance during work on a revised programme for 
housing stock, particularly sheltered housing. 
 
A meeting to go through processes with the Regulator had been held with 
follow-up correspondence from the Chief Executive to update on critical issues 
around compliance and progress on the improvement plan. 
 
An action plan was presented to the committee with the primary focus on 
sheltered housing as well as up-to-date fire risk assessment and inspection. It 
was additionally reported that: 
 

• Certification to be reissued on 3,500 properties 

• A rewiring contract to be commissioned to include certification 

• Gas compliance stood at 98% with a strategy in place 

• New IT was to be installed by January 2021 to improve monitoring  
 
All Members would be provided a copy of the action as provided to the 
Regulator with regular reports back to the committee. 
 
Members raised a number of questions and received the following responses: 
 

• An officer group had been set to manage and drive forward changes 
that included the new IT system and deployment of staff. There would 
be elements of external procurement. 

• Updates to the improvement plan would be provided to the Committee.  

• A housing dashboard was being investigated which would provide 
regular reports with an audit plan that provided further checks on 
delivery.  

• The Director of Housing and Property was anticipated to be in place by 
April 2021. Appreciation was expressed at the skills provided by the 
Interim Assistant Director of Housing. 

• The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, the Leader of the 
Council, the Chief Executive and the Interim Assistant Director of 
Housing met weekly to address housing issues.  

• A quarterly report covering S106 arrangements would be provided. 

10



 

• As a result of high heating costs to residents, all current installations 
had been halted with future systems to include insultation and factoring 
in fuel costs. 

• An external peer review had not been undertaken for many years and 
the need for an external review was recognised. 

• Implications of contents and private insurance for resident had been 
investigated with assurance that there were no risks to residents. 

• Void progress would be reported by the Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Planning. 

 
Members were advised that the Housing Regulator would be monitoring the 
Council over a 4-year period with intervention over the initial 2 years. A new 
housing business plan was to be incorporated once the survey of housing 
stock had been completed. 
 
A councillor made a statement to the Committee outlining the need to address 
scrutiny failures and the proposed timescales of the action plan that he felt 
could be shorter through the use of the additional housing profit funds while 
flagging concerns of future legal costs. The Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning confirmed that he had met with the Conservative Group and all 
members to discuss housing compliance and vision for future improvements.  
 
Production of a one year and a separate three-year budget to address 
improvements were to be presented in 2021. Additional funding was being 
discussed with Homes England.  
 
A statement was read by the Leader of the Council: 
 

We can all admit that the findings of the reports today make incredibly 
difficult reading, they have highlighted clear failings in the processes 
relating to our housing service and I would like to say on behalf of the 
South Kesteven District Council that I am sorry and I would like to 
apologise unreservedly to all of our tenants who have been impacted by 
this.  
 
The priority of the Council is and will always be, our residents and tenants 
and we have taken direct action in response to the findings of these 
reports. 
 
We are working closely with tenants to support them and ensure these 
issues are never repeated. 
 
In terms of the housing audit report this was commissioned by myself and 
Councillor Reid after we raised concerns with the Chief Executive who also 
had concerns, shortly after she took up her role. 
 
We are taking direct action in response to the findings and working closely 
with the Regulator of Social Housing as I know Chris Stratford will have 

11



 

informed you and we will be providing you with regular updates going 
forward. 
 
Open and honest communication with tenants has also been at the heart 
of our approach and I know this is particular key in terms of the Housing 
Portfolio Holder, Councillor Reid.  
 
We have a dedicated team to respond to questions and support tenants 
throughout this process. 
 
And what I hope this provides is clear reassurance that I, alongside 
Councillor Reid and our Chief Executive are determined to tackle any 
challenges we face head on. 
 
Our focus is driving forward significant improvement to our housing service 
for our tenants and for that of course, that will take all of our work as all of 
us represent in our ward residents in our social homes. 
 
And once again can I apologise unreservedly on behalf of the Council for 
our failings we are having to deal with following our commissioning of that 
report. 
 

ACTION 3 
1. The Interim Assistant Director of Housing to provide all Committee 

Members with a copy of action plan as provided to the Regulator. 
2. Add to the work programme ongoing reports on progress by the Interim 

Assistant Director of Housing. 
3. The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning to provide members 

with a copy of the improvement plan. 
4. The Chief Executive to put in place a housing dashboard. 
5. Note an error on page 28 of report, which at table 6.1 Bulford Drive, 

Bourne states ‘planning not submitted’ but should read ‘planning 
application has been made and refused’ 

6. Breakdown of costs for current IT system to be provided by the Interim 
Assistant Director of Housing.  
 

On being put to the vote it was AGREED to recommend: 
1. To review the Compliance Audit and action plan to meet the 

recommendations indicated within the audit plan and agree to receive 
quarterly updates on the progress being made within the work 
programme. 

2. To note and provide comments on the revised 3 year rolling HRA New 
Build Housing Investment programme and support the principle that the 
housing service should focus on compliance priorities, utilising where 
necessary funds released through rationalising the HRA New Build 
Housing Investment programme proposals. 

12



 

3. That Officers provide necessary updates to members regarding key 
performance and delivery of programmes to ensure capital investment 
and compliance objectives are achieved. 

4. To note that the Council has reported itself to the Regulator and is 
jointly working with the Regulator towards compliance as a matter of 
priority. 

 
A further recommendation was proposed to form a working group which was 
not seconded. 
 

79. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
A presentation of Key Performance Indicators and targets to align with the 
new Corporate Plan was introduced by the Leader of the Council who 
explained that the Corporate Plan had been approved by Council on 
1 October 2020. This was now being presented to scrutiny for review. 
 
The report was then presented to the committee by the Assistant Chief 
Executive who set out the targets of the committee, advising that a revised 
draft would then be circulated should there be any changes. This committee 
was the first scrutiny committee to consider the KPIs, the other Scrutiny 
Committees would consider their relevant KPIs at future meetings of those 
committees. 
 
On being put to the vote it was AGREED to recommend: 

1. To approve the proposed key performance indicators and targets 
associated with the actions in the South Kesteven Corporate Plan 
2020-23. 

2. To note that key performance indicators and success criteria for each 
action will be reviewed and if necessary revised as part of the annual 
review process. 

 
80. Riverside Flats 

 
The Chairman advised that due to the Appendix for this item being exempt 
should this be referenced then the meeting would go to closed session. Julie 
Picken, an independent consultant was welcomed by the Chairman to the 
meeting. 
 
A statement was read to all present by the Chairman as a ward member: 
 

I was horrified to read in the local Grantham Journal a headline: “Lied to 
and let down” as my colleague, Councillor Smith and I had both responded 
immediately to every call we had had of lack of water or heating from the 
Riverside complex. 
 

13



 

The whole sorry saga has been a catalogue of errors and like the residents 
we too have been let down as we escalated the complaints to the housing 
department in blind faith that positive steps had been taken. 
 
I believe many residents had reported their complaints to Customer 
Services and then contacted councillors in desperation and frustration 
when things did not improve. 
 
Let me make it clear, the residents and the community are my priority and 
this must never, ever, happen again as it is a total disgrace to the residents 
and some elderly and vulnerable people in such distress.  
 
Hopefully lessons have been learned.  
 
However I fully understand the distress all this has caused and I was 
pleased to hear from a couple of residents last year that they were happy 
with the repairs that had taken place and to quote one gentleman he said 
to me he was “as warm as toast” which was good news. 
 
We also have a new Chief Executive who, along with the Leader, is totally 
committed to putting in place the proper management within a housing 
portfolio; supported by Councillor Robert Reid the Cabinet Member for 
Housing.  
 
I look forward to having a single point of contact for residents and further 
updates at meetings. 
 

The Chairman invited ward Councillor Jacky Smith to make a statement 
however she was not able to due to technical difficulties.  
 
The Leader of the Council reported that he had visited Riverside with the 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning and would continue to do so on a 
regular basis. The commissioned report had identified failures for which he 
unreservedly apologised on behalf of the District Council to the residents for 
the inconvenience and trauma. The Chief Executive added her sincere 
apologies and expressed disappointment that the Health and Safety Executive 
report had not yet been received to also present at this meeting. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning reported that he had not been 
satisfied with the heating system being provided to tenants. There was a 5-
year life span remaining for the boilers which he would be looking to replace 
with allocated budget already in place. 
 
A report was presented by the independent consultant, Julie Picken, in the 
form of slides which were circulated with the agenda. The consultant was 
appointed on 20 January 2020 to conduct an independent inquiry. 
 

14



 

A further presentation by the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
providing an update on works performed to date including a recommendation 
to the committee to create a Tenants Liaison Panel which would be made up 
of himself as the Cabinet Member and two nominated Councillors. 
 
It was recommended that the Tenants Liaison Panel include a councillor from 
each of Stamford, Bourne and The Deepings. The Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning stipulated the need for the Panel to be localised with 
representatives of other areas separately. 
 
A Member requested dedicated members of staff to support requests by 
elderly residents due to their specific needs. She also requested any works 
avoid the winter months at elderly households and where work was 
unavoidable to offer alternative temporary accommodation while work was 
undertaken. 
 
The meeting having reached the scheduled 3-hour limit the Chairman 
proposed an extension of 30 minutes which was seconded and AGREED by 
all present. 
 
Appreciation was expressed to the private consultant for her presentation. 
Tribute was also paid to Mr Gadd for his persistence in raising issues at 
Riverside. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning informed councillors that the 
repairs/servicing of the heating and hot water system was complete with an 
upgrade commencing 23 November 2020. 
 
Members were advised that until receipt of the report by the Health and Safety 
Executive, it was not known whether any action may be taken against the 
Council.  
 
Councillor Jacky Smith, having overcome earlier technical difficulties, made a 
statement as a ward member, providing a short account of her efforts on 
behalf of residents at Riverside, and relaying her frustration at having been 
informed by officers at the time that everything repairs were proceeding. 
 
A member queried whether the two tenants referred to by the Cabinet Member 
for Housing and Planning now had access to hot water and heating and 
whether this would need to be turned off during the upgrade: In response the 
Cabinet Member informed that the loss of hot water was a result of the units 
silting up and assured members that the two residents would be the first to 
receive upgrades. He was not aware that the residents in question were 
currently without hot water.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning did not have sight of the report 
until September 2020. The independent consultant confirmed that she had 
sent the report to the Council in March 2020; it had been received by a person 

15



 

who was no longer in the employment of the Council. Different options for 
environmentally friendly heating were being explored. 
 
On being put to the vote it was AGREED to recommend: 

1. To note the recommendations contained in the attached Independent 
Consultants Report, and requests that officers be required to update 
the Committee on progress to achieve full implementation of the 
recommendations on a quarterly basis. 

2. To note that the Health and Safety Executive’s report dealing with 
potential breaches relating to the management of asbestos during the 
carrying out of the Riverside hot water and heating repairs would be 
submitted to the Committee once received. 

 
The Chief Executive confirmed receipt of the report provided by the 
independent inspector and explained that it had been intended to present the 
report alongside that of the Health and Safety Executive, however the impact 
of the pandemic had delayed this report. She further advised members that 
any councillor can request copies of exempt papers. 
 
Councillors opted not to go into closed session, as they did not wish to discuss 
any matters contained solely within the exempt appendix. 
 

81. Work Programme 
 
The work programme was noted. 
 
Meeting closed: 17:30 
 
 

16



 
 

Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
– 2020/2021 

Actions from meeting held on 12 November 2020 
 

 Task Assigned to Deadline Noted by Progress/Comments 

12 November 2020 

68 Verbal Update from Cabinet Members 

To be added to the 
Committees work 
programme: 
Report of action plan 
following the Council the 
motion on anti-racism. 

Democracy 
Services 

 Susan 
Hislop 

Included to work programme for meeting on 11 March 2021 

 Mental Health Challenge Workshop 

Councillor volunteers for 
the Mental Health 
Challenge workshop to 
be noted, and the list of 
names provided to the 
event organisers 

Democracy 
Services 

 Susan 
Hislop 

Names provided to Head of Organisational Development for 
event held on 12 December 2020 

Health and Safety Compliance Report 

1. The Interim 
Assistant Director of 
Housing to provide 
all Committee 
Members with a 
copy of action plan 

The Interim 
Assistant 
Director of 
Housing 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received from the Executive Assistant on 
21 December 2020. Information circulated to committee 
members on same day. 

17

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

 Task Assigned to Deadline Noted by Progress/Comments 

as provided to the 
Regulator. 

2. Add to the work 
programme ongoing 
reports on progress 
by the Interim 
Assistant Director of 
Housing. 

Democracy 
Services 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Included to work programme for meeting on 11 March 2021 

3. The Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
and Planning to 
provide members 
with a copy of the 
improvement plan. 

Cabinet 
Member for 

Housing 
and 

Planning 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received from the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning on 8 December 2020:  
This was included in the Full Council paper on 26/11/2020 (but 
was not discussed due to time) item 9, appx 2 –  
 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s28377/Appendix%202.pdf 
 
It will be taken to the 17/12/20 Council meeting. 

4. The Chief Executive 
to put in place a 
housing dashboard. 

Chief 
Executive 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received from Chief Executive on 3 December 2020: 
 

The Housing Dashboard is currently being developed 
and an update will be reported to the next meeting of the 
Committee. 
 
The dashboard will report against the Housing 
improvement plan, performance indicators, critical 
developments with the statistics for the compliance 
elements. Baseline information is being collated. 

5. Note an error on 
page 28 of report, 
which at table 6.1 
Bulford Drive, 
Bourne states 
‘planning not 

Interim 
Assistant 
Director 
Housing 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received from the Interim Assistant Director of 
Housing on 21 December 2020 that the Government and Audit 
Committee and Full Council had received the amended version. 
An asterisk refers to the bottom of the chart which states that it 
had been refused and another application is due to be 

18

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s28377/Appendix%202.pdf


 
 

 Task Assigned to Deadline Noted by Progress/Comments 

submitted’ but 
should read 
‘planning application 
has been made and 
refused’ 

submitted. When it was presented to this committee it was not 
known when it was sent. 

6. Breakdown of costs 
for current IT 
system to be 
provided by the 
Interim Assistant 
Director of Housing 

Interim 
Assistant 
Director of 
Housing 

16 
December 

2020 

Susan 
Hislop 

Response received from the Interim Assistant Director of 
Housing on 21 December 2020. Figures to be supplied by the 
Head of Housing Service. 

 

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

7th January 2021 

Report of:  Councillor Annie Mason 

   Cabinet Member for Communities 

         
  

 

Anti-Racism Action Planning 

This report is provided to share the draft action plan and to outline how the points raised in the 
Motion to Council are proposed to be delivered.  

 

 

Report Author 

Carol Drury, Senior Community Development Officer 

Tel:  01476 406 161 

Email:  c.drury@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Paul Stokes, Head of Corporate Operations 11 December 2020 

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operations 

14 December 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for 
Communities 

16 December 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Recommends the Anti-Racism Action Plan to the Cabinet Member for Communities 
and agrees that the actions be reported as part of the monitoring process for the 
Council’s Equality Objectives. 

 

21

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In October 2020 a Motion was supported by Full Council relating to its need to 

acknowledge and tackle racism within the District. 

1.2 The agreed Resolution outlined the need for South Kesteven District Council to recognise 

that “there is no place for racism in the UK today. SKDC commits to ensuring its functions 

and practices are compliant with its legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and that it 

is an authority not just tackling inequality to meet a duty, but one that actively works with 

its communities and other agencies to fight racism and hate crime throughout the district”. 

1.3 As a direct outcome it was agreed that actions be developed to address the individual 

points highlighted in the Resolution that would sit within the existing processes of the 

Authority.  All agreed actions would therefore be incorporated into the Council’s Equality 

Objectives and the Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement, both of which are 

requirements under the Equality Act 2010. 

1.4 A draft of the proposed actions is therefore presented as part of this report at Appendix A. 

1.5 A specific action outlined in the Resolution is “to ask organisations across the district to 

pledge their commitment to anti-racism and tackling inequality”.  To address this point it is 

proposed that the Council develops an Equalities Charter that will be shared with the 

business and third sector with a request for these organisations to sign agreement.  A 

draft Charter is provided at Appendix B.  Officers from the Council and InvestSK will work 

collaboratively to produce sector-specific guidance to promote sign-up to the Equalities 

Charter across South Kesteven. 

1.6 Actions identified and agreed will be added to the Council’s Equality Objectives when 

these are next reviewed.  Delivery against the actions will commence once agreement of 

the proposed actions is reached and will continue in conjunction with the existing four-year 

action plan that ensures delivery against the Equality Objectives.  These will be monitored 

through the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

1.7 The delivery of actions relating to the promotion of anti-racism and intolerance will 

complement the Council’s adoption on 30th January 2020 of the International Holocaust 

Remembrance Alliance’s definition of anti-Semitism and the All-Party Parliamentary Group 

on British Muslim’s definition of Islamophobia. 

1.8 Members are asked to consider the proposed actions and recommend their approval to 

the Cabinet Member for Communities. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 This Motion was robustly debated at Council and any recommendations from Rural and 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will inform the final document and 

associated actions. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 No other options were considered. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 N/A. 

22



 

 
 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The recommendation is made so that the actions can be agreed and delivery can begin. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Following the recommendations of this Committee, the Cabinet Member for Communities 

will be asked to approve the actions for inclusion within the Council’s Equality Objectives 

and Action Plan for delivery.   

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from the report and supporting 

appendices. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The legal implications are covered in paragraph 9.1 below. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 These actions form part of the Council’s response to its responsibilities under the Public 

Sector Equality Duty.  Its purpose is to help fulfil the Council’s duty to eliminate unlawful 

discrimination, harassment and victimisation.   

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No significant risks have been identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 Hate crime and racist activity is evidenced in daily life. Incidents often go unreported so 

the scale of the issue is largely unknown. In passing this resolution and developing and 

delivering its action plan it is the intention of the Council to show its support for targeted 

communities.  Through collaboration with other agencies and support for community 

initiatives that promote acceptance and understanding we will minimise or remove 

opportunities for intolerance within the district. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Not applicable to this report. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Minutes of Council 1st October 2020 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – Draft of Proposed Actions to deliver the Anti-Racism Motion 

15.2 Appendix B – Draft Equalities Charter 

23

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4


 

 
 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not Applicable 

Previously Considered by:  Not Applicable 

Final Decision date   Not Applicable 

 

24



 

 

Appendix A 
 
Proposed Actions to deliver the Anti-Racism Motion passed by Full Council on the 1/10/20 
Anti-Racism Motion to Council: 
South Kesteven District Council recognises that there is no place for racism in the UK today. SKDC commits to ensuring its functions and practices are compliant with its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and that it is an authority not just tackling inequality to meet a duty, but one that actively works with its communities and 
other agencies to fight racism and hate crime throughout the district. 

Resolution Sub-bullets Proposed Response Action Proposed Dates 
To declare that this Council is intolerant to racism and will continue to 
seek to eradicate it, Islamophobia, Anti-Semitism and hate crime 
across the district by developing initiatives that are actively inclusive 
and anti-racist 

This declaration will be added to the Equalities Annual Position Statement for 2020/21 and 
will be incorporated into the Council’s Equality Objectives next year with any relevant 
initiatives added into the Action Plan to be delivered through the Community 
Engagement/Development agenda. 

September 2021 

To acknowledge the work carried out by the Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee of this Council, responding to the 
governments Green Paper on Community Cohesion in a positive way, 
by encouraging and recognising the diversity of our community and to 
celebrate all cultures 

Work carried out by, and on behalf of, the Rural and Communities OSC will be 
acknowledged within the Equalities Annual Position Statement which goes before this 
committee prior to publication on the Council’s website. 

September 2021 

To continue to engage with all members of our community through 
this council, the Jubilee Church, Muslim, Hindu and other faiths 
encouraging all new citizens no matter what their background, to 
cherish the values and principles that underpin British Society 

Dialogue will continue with faith groups as part of the Council’s Community Engagement 
remit.  This work will extend beyond the identified groups and incorporate other 
representative groups and individuals from BAME communities to seek to engender 
acceptance, cohesion and integration.   

Ongoing 

To respect freedom of speech, to have tolerance and understanding 
for other people’s beliefs, to integrate, and value our customs and 
way of life which is vital for the harmony and wellbeing of a 
successful community 

This statement will be added to the Equalities Annual Position Statement. September 2021 

To ask organisations across the district to pledge their commitment to 
anti-racism and tackling inequality 

Develop an Equalities Charter that would incorporate a commitment to anti-racism and 
equality of opportunity within local organisations.  Add into procurement arrangements to 
encourage those we commission to share these values. Work with InvestSK to promote the 
Charter to the business community of South Kesteven and encourage them to pledge their 
commitment by signing up to the charter. 

Spring 2021 and 
ongoing 

To initiate a review involving BAME (Black, Asian and Minority 
Ethnic) members of our community, of processes, policies and 
organisational attitudes 

Each service area to undertake a service level equality impact assessment to review the 
function, practice and policy of their service area which is collated to provide a summary 
for the Council.  Following the self-assessment the Council will seek to commission a 
professional organisation to assess and validate findings. 

April to October 
2021 
 
 

To invite appropriate speakers on these issues to help with training 
for councillors and staff 

HR and Member Services to work together to introduce into existing programmes training 
and awareness raising, which can include sessions delivered by people representing 
relevant protected characteristics 

From Spring 2021 
and ongoing 

 

25

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix B 

 

South Kesteven 

Equality Charter 

 

It’s All About You.  A pledge for equality across South Kesteven 

Our ambition for South Kesteven and its growing, diverse population is to create a fairer, safer, 

accessible and inclusive district where everyone feels welcome, has a voice and has equitable 

opportunities to succeed, thrive and belong.  As the District Council we will work proactively 

to tackle issues of inequality. 

By signing up to this charter you are agreeing that your organisation will: 

• Help make South Kesteven a welcoming district where everyone feels they belong 

 

• Recognise, value and celebrate diversity 

 

• Promote inclusion, participation and equitable access amongst staff, customers, 

clients and users 

 

• Recognise, support and empower those responsible for promoting equality in your 

organisation 

 

• Actively challenge discrimination, harassment, hate crime, racism, bullying and 

victimisation 

 

I confirm that (insert name of organisation) is committed to the South Kesteven Equality 

Charter. 

 

Signed……………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Date………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

 

Company/Group logo 

27

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

Work Programme 

 

Current Issues/Status  Activities and Timetable  
Outcome sought / Key 
lines of enquiry 

Verbal Update from 
Cabinet Members 

Verbal updates throughout Covid-19 pandemic, on the current 
situation during the pandemic. 
Updates on: 

• Update on Covid-19 
(further items TBC) 

11 March 
2021, 2:00pm 
Virtual 
Meeting 

Committee to feedback and 
comment on verbal updates, 
and suggest/request areas 
for further scrutiny at future 
meetings 

Progress Report to 
Health and Safety 
Compliance Report 

Report on progress since the presentation of the Health and 
Safety Compliance Report to the Committee on 12 November 
2020 

To receive progress to 
deliver recommendations and 
regulatory requirements from 
report 

Safeguarding Review 
An overview of projects to improve Safeguarding Processes, and 
scrutiny of the work taking place 

Suggestions for improvement 
of safeguarding processes 

Modern Slavery Charter 
Report seeking recommendation to adopt the County Modern 
Slavery Charter 

Agreement to adopt the 
Modern Slavery Charter as 
developed by the Safer 
Lincolnshire Partnership to 
work collaboratively to tackle 
Modern Slavery in the 
County. 

Riverside Flats 
To consider further findings into issues around repairs to the 
heating system at Riverside Flats in Grantham 

 

To consider the report and 
make any recommendations 
to Cabinet, and note actions 
that will take place going 
forward 

ADDITIONAL MEETING 
PRIOR TO MEETING OR 
POST 

Crime and Disorder – Neighborhood Policing / ASB  See below 

Verbal Update from 
Cabinet Members 

Verbal updates throughout Covid-19 pandemic, on the current 
situation during the pandemic. 
Updates on: 

• Update on Covid-19 
(further items TBC) 

29 April 2021, 
2:00pm 
(location TBC) 

Committee to feedback and 
comment on verbal updates, 
and suggest/request areas 
for further scrutiny at future 
meetings 

29

A
genda Item

 9



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

Work Programme 

 

Current Issues/Status  Activities and Timetable  
Outcome sought / Key 
lines of enquiry 

   

Further items TBC   

Use of Community 
Infrastructure Levy TBC 

To assess the feasibility of using the Community Infrastructure 
Levy AWAITING PARLIAMENTARY CONSIDERATION OF 
WHITE PAPER CONSULTATION 

 
Assess feasibility and make 
recommendations either way 
to Cabinet 

    

  

30



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

Work Programme 

 

Unscheduled items 

Crime and Disorder – 
Neighborhood Policing / 
ASB 

Inspector Gary Stewart to be invited to attend  
Marc Jones (Community Resilience Lead) 
 

11 March 
2020 

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 
Coronavirus: 

• How dealt with it 

• Lessons learnt 

• Liaison with outside 
agencies 

 

REMIT 
The remit of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist with the development of policy 
and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 
 

• Anti-social Behaviour 

• Assisted Garden Maintenance Scheme 

• Benefit Claims 

• Community Cohesion 

• Community Funding & Volunteering 

• Community Right to Bid 

• Community Safety and Local Policing 

• Customer Services 

• DASH Landlord Accreditation Scheme 

• Disabled Facilities Grant 

• Empty Homes Assistance 

• Empty Homes Discount 

• Equalities and Diversity 

• Essential Home Repair Assistance 

• Gravitas Housing 

• Health 

• Homelessness 

• Housing Management, Improvement and 

Repairs 

• Housing Partnership 

• HR and Organisational Development 

• Landlords Forum 

• Parish and Town Council Liaison 

• Procurement 

• Safeguarding 

• Well-being 

Membership 7 

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Action Notes from the meeting held on 12 November 2020
	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	7 Anti-Racism Report
	Appendix A - Anti-Racism Motion - Proposed Actions
	Appendix B - Draft South Kesteven Equality Charter

	9 Future Work Programme

